# **AGREEMENT**

# **BETWEEN THE**

# **CLAYTON ADMINISTRATORS' ASSOCIATION**

# **AND THE**

# **CLAYTON BOARD OF EDUCATION**

# FOR SCHOOL YEARS

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
PREAMBLE	2
ARTICLE I: RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE II: NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES	2
ARTICLE III: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	2
ARTICLE IV: INSURANCE PROGRAMS	4
ARTICLE V: VACATION POLICY	5
ARTICLE VI: SICK LEAVE	5
ARTICLE VII: LEAVE OF ABSENCE	6
ARTICLE VIII: ADMINISTRATORS' RIGHTS AND BENEFITS	6
ARTICLE IX: DEDUCTION OF DUES	8
ARTICLE X: SALARY	9
ARTICLE XI: WORK YEAR/WORK LOAD	9
ARTICLE XII: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	9
ARTICLE XIII: MISCELLANEOUS	10
ARTICLE XIV: FOUR-HOUR DETENTION & TWILIGHT	10
SIGNATURE PAGE	11

#### **PREAMBLE**

This Agreement entered into on June 11, 2019 by and between the Clayton Administrators' Association, hereinafter called the "Association," and the Clayton Board of Education, hereinafter called the "Board," to be effective as of July 1, 2019, and to continue in effect until June 30, 2023.

## ARTICLE I: RECOGNITION

In accordance with Chapter 123 Public Laws of 1974, the Board hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative for collective negotiations concerning terms and conditions of employment for administrative personnel employed in the District as listed in Schedule A excluding all other employees of the Board.

## ARTICLE II: NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES

- A. The Board and the Association shall engage in good faith bargaining in accordance with the schedule established by law.
- B. During negotiations, the Board and the Association shall exchange relevant data requested by the other, if available.
- C. Whenever a member of the Association is mutually scheduled by the parties to participate during working hours in negotiations, the member shall suffer no loss of pay and/or benefits.

## ARTICLE III: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### A. Definition

The term grievance means a complaint or claim by any administrative employee over the interpretations, application, or alleged violation of the negotiated agreements, Board policies, and administrative decisions affecting the employee's terms and conditions of employment.

#### B. Purpose

The purpose of this procedure is to secure a solution at the lowest possible level to problems which may arise from time to time affecting the terms and conditions of employment of the employees covered by this Agreement.

#### C. Procedure

- 1. In the presentation of a grievance, all employees shall have the right to present their own appeals or to designate representatives to appear with them at any step in their appeals. Employees and/or their representatives processing a grievance shall be assured freedom from constraint, interference, coercion, discrimination, or reprisal.
- 2. Any grievance must be lodged at the proper initiating level within twenty (20) calendar days of the happening of the event or within twenty (20) calendar days after the employee would be reasonably expected to know of its occurrence, otherwise the grievance shall be deemed waived and barred.

- 3. Failure to respond to a grievance within the time limit specified herein will permit the grievance to be presented at the next level. Failure of the grievant to appeal within the time limit specified herein will be deemed to be an acceptance of the disposition at the proceeding level.
- 4. Employees shall first discuss their grievances orally with their immediate supervisors. If the grievances are not resolved to the employees' satisfaction within seven (7) calendar days, the employees shall submit their grievance to their immediate supervisors in writing specifying:
  - a. the acts or omissions complained of
  - b. the specified articles of the contract alleged to be violated
  - c. the remedies sought

Immediate supervisors shall communicate their decisions to the grievant in writing within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the written grievance.

- 5. If the grievant's immediate supervisor is not the Superintendent, the grievant, no later than seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the immediate supervisor's decision, may appeal the decision to the Superintendent of Schools. The appeal to the Superintendent must be made in writing reciting the matter submitted to the immediate supervisor and attaching a copy of the immediate supervisor's written decision. The Superintendent shall attempt to resolve the matter as quickly as possible but within a period not to exceed fourteen (14) calendar days. The Superintendent shall communicate the decision in writing to the grievant and the immediate supervisor.
- 6. If the grievance is not resolved by the Superintendent to the grievant's satisfaction, the employee, no later than seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the Superintendent's written decision, may request a review by the Board of Education. The request shall be submitted in writing through the Superintendent who shall attach all related papers and forward the request to the Board of Education. The Board, or a committee thereof, shall review the grievance and shall, at the option of the Board, hold a hearing with the grievant and render a decision in writing within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of the grievance by the Board.
- 7. If the aggrieved employee is not satisfied with the decision and disposition of the grievance as determined by the Board, or if no decision has been rendered within forty-five (45) calendar days after the grievance was filed to the Board, a grievance over a disciplinary determination may be submitted to binding arbitration and a grievance over an alleged violation of the express written terms of this agreement may be submitted to non-binding arbitration, either of which shall be initiated and conducted under the rules of the American Arbitration

Association of PERC as decided by the Board. Alleged statutory violations may be appealed before the appropriate legal forum but shall not be arbitral under this agreement. In all other grievances, the disposition of the grievance by the Board will be final.

- 8. Arbiters shall limit themselves to the issues submitted to them. They can add nothing to nor subtract anything from the agreement between the parties.
- 9. The fees and expenses of the arbiter shall be shared equally by the two parties. Any other costs shall be borne by the party incurring them. Where, however, the grievant elects to proceed without the Association's concurrence, the cost shall not be borne or shared by the Association.

#### ARTICLE IV: INSURANCE PROGRAMS

#### A. Health Benefits

The Board of Education will provide health care insurance benefits substantially equal to the existing plan or the State Health Benefits Plan. The base plan for health benefits will be NJ Direct or Aetna \$20/\$20. The benefit shall include full family coverage for all members of the Association (health care insurance, prescription, and dental) if such coverage is selected. For any member who elects the AmeriHealth PPO/Aetna Choice POS II \$20/\$35 plan or HMO, the Board of Education will contribute \$200 to a Flex Spending Account. Flex Spending Accounts operate on a January to December calendar year. Enrollment is required. All members shall be subject to the health insurance premium contribution amounts established by P.L. 2011c.78. Administrators who opt for payment in lieu of coverage will receive a cash amount as follows:

SINGLE	\$1,500
PARENT/CHILD(REN)	\$2,000
HUSBAND/WIFE	\$2,500
FAMILY	\$3,000

#### B. Prescription Plan

The Board will provide a full family prescription drug plan. The Prescription Plan will be the plan offered by the State that corresponds with the Base Plan for Health Benefits above.

- C. Dental Benefits
  - The Board will provide Dental coverage for administrators July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2023 according to the current plan.
- D. A master contract shall be available in the Board Office for review by the administrators.
- E. Deductibles and co-payments under Sections A, B, and C will remain the same for the duration of this contract subject to the requirements of P.L. 2011 c. 78 and the New Jersey State Health Benefits Plan (where applicable).

F. The Clayton Board of Education will offer a 100% Employer Paid Long Term Disability Plan with a benefits waiting period of 90 days.

#### ARTICLE V: VACATION POLICY

- A. Each member of the Association who is a twelve-month employee will accrue 1.66 days per month for a total of twenty (20) vacation days per year ended June 30<sup>th</sup>. A minimum of thirteen (13) vacation days must be taken during non-class days. Up to seven (7) vacation days may be taken during class-scheduled days with the approval of the Superintendent.
- B. The work year for each member of the Clayton Administrators' Association is defined as July 1<sup>st</sup> through June 30<sup>th</sup> minus vacation time earned, Fourth of July, Labor Day, and the holidays established in the official school calendar.
- C. Each twelve (12) month employee member of the Association may carry up to ten (10) earned vacation days over to the next school calendar year. Those days must be used prior to July 1 of that school year. In the event that they are not used, these days shall be forfeited.
- D. Members who die before their contract periods are complete shall have payment for their unused vacation days earned payable to their estate based on the year of the accrual.
- E. Members who retire or separate from service to the District during the contract year shall receive cash payments for their unused vacation days earned consistent with their per diem contract salary based on the year of accrual. This clause does not release administrators from requirements of Article V, Section C and Section D. See Article XIII, Paragraph A5.
- F. The per diem rate used for calculating the payout of unused vacation days will be 1/260<sup>th</sup> of salary.

#### ARTICLE VI: SICK LEAVE

#### A. Accumulative

All full-time twelve (12) month administrative employees shall be entitled to twelve (12) days sick leave per year. Unused personal days shall be rolled to sick leave days for the duration of this contract. Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year.

#### B. Retirement

Any administrative employee retiring or leaving the District after ten (10) years of service in the District with a minimum of twenty-five (25) accumulated unused sick days shall receive \$100 per day for all accumulated sick days subject to applicable law. Accumulated unused sick pay shall not exceed \$15,000 and will be paid over a two-year period.

## ARTICLE VII: LEAVE OF ABSENCE

All full-time administrative employees shall be entitled to the following temporary non-cumulative leaves of absence.

- A. Applications for leave under this Article must be made at least four (4) days before taking the leave (except in emergencies). The Superintendent shall approve up to four (4) days personal time with pay. These days may be taken without a reason. Additional leave may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent. Leave shall not be taken the day before or after a holiday or long weekend without approval of the Superintendent.
- B. Three unused personal days shall be accumulated as sick days and may be used for payment purposes as stated in Article VI.
- C. Should the Superintendent deem it necessary for additional leaves of absence, said leave under Section XIII A 1 must be requested in advance and receive the Superintendent's approval.
- D. Absence due to death in the immediate family shall be allowed with pay up to a maximum of five (5) days. Immediate family means husband, wife, father, mother, child, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, paternal/maternal grandparents of staff members and their spouses, or any person standing in loco parentis.

# ARTICLE VIII: ADMINISTRATORS' RIGHTS AND BENEFITS

- A. Retained Rights and Benefits

  Except as set forth below and as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, all previous terms and conditions of employment relating to administrators' rights and benefits shall be terminated as of the date of this contract.
  - 1. Payment of dues for each administrator for membership in any two (2) (one (1) National and one (1) State) of the following professional organizations: New Jersey Principals and Supervisors Association, National Secondary School Principals Association, National Elementary School Principals Association, Association for School Curriculum Development, National Special Education Association, and the New Jersey Association of School Administrators. Mentoring fees (up to \$1,500) for new administrators will be reimbursed in the following budget year after successful completion of the program. If administrator terminates employment within three (3) years, the mentoring fees will be reimbursed to the District.
  - 2. Snow Days: Attendance shall be at the discretion of the Superintendent.
  - 3. For clarification purposes, New Jersey Education Association or New Jersey Principals and Supervisors Association Conventions may be attended by

administrators without utilization of vacation time. In the event of nonattendance, administrators will work in District.

## B. Management Prerogatives

- 1. The Board specifically retains all of its legal authority including but not limited to the following:
  - a. the right to direct the employees of the District
  - b. the right to hire, promote, transfer, assign, and retain employees in positions in the District and to suspend, demote, discharge, or take other disciplinary action against employees
  - c. the right to relieve employees of duty because of lack of work or other legitimate reasons
  - d. the right to maintain efficiency of the District operations entrusted to it
  - e. the right to determine the methods, means, and personnel by which operations are to be conducted
  - f. the right to take whatever actions may be necessary to carry out the mission of the District in situations of emergency
- 2. Additional responsibilities and duties not herein specifically described or excluded but consistent with normal educational practices may be assigned by the Board and/or the Superintendent of Schools following statutory requirements visà-vis the chain of command.

#### C. Evaluation

- 1. The Superintendent shall establish supervisor procedures that will guarantee a yearly minimum of three (3) written evaluations for each non-tenured administrative employee and two (2) evaluations for each tenured administrative employee.
- 2. Each administrative employee shall sign all copies of each written evaluation attesting to the fact that the contents of the evaluation are known to him or her.
- 3. A conference shall be arranged between the evaluator and the administrative employee as soon as possible after receipt of the written evaluation by the administrative employee in compliance with NJAC 6:30-1.21. At such time, the administrative employee is entitled to have his or her response to the evaluation heard and appended to the evaluation report.
- 4. Each non-tenured administrative employee shall receive written notice prior to May 15 of each year whether or not the Superintendent intends to recommend a renewal of the contract for the ensuing year.

- D. All personnel represented by the Association shall be permitted reasonable perusal of their complete personnel files and an opportunity to place written communications in such files in response to material in the files. Such requests shall be presented in writing to the Superintendent a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours prior to the desired time of perusal. Any written response must be added no later than forty-eight (48) hours following receipt of said material by the member or forty-eight (48) hours following formal time of perusal. Said personnel files shall be reviewed only in the office where maintained and shall not be removed from that place.
- E. When administrative employees are required to appear before the Superintendent for the purpose of formal disciplinary action, they shall be given prior written notice of the reasons for such meetings or interviews and shall be entitled to representation. The Superintendent shall be provided within twenty-four (24) hours written notice as to the name and position of the representative.
- F. When administrative employees are required to appear before the Board or any committee thereof for the purpose of disciplinary action, they shall be given two (2) days prior written notice of the reasons for such meeting or interview and shall be entitled to representation. The Board shall be provided with twenty-four (24) hours written notice as to the name and position of this representative.
- G. Contracts shall be issued May 30 of each year.
- H. Longevity

All administrators who have completed the listed number of years as an administrator in the District shall receive the additional amounts added to his or her base salary:

After 5 Years \$1,500 (Years 6-10)
After 10 Years \$1,750 (Years 11-15)
After 15 Years \$2,000 (Years 16+)

Employees hired after July 1, 2013 shall no longer be eligible for payments under this Section.

## I. Personal Cell Phone Reimbursement

The district will reimburse Administrators for Data Plans as follows – 10 month employees will receive 10 months of reimbursement; 12 month employees will receive 12 months of reimbursement. Reimbursements will be made quarterly. Principals & Assistant Principals will receive \$80 per month (\$90 per month beginning in the 2020-2021 year); Supervisors & Literacy Specialists will receive \$60 per month (\$70 per month beginning in the 2020-2021 year.)

## ARTICLE IX: DEDUCTION OF DUES

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 310 of the laws of 1967 (RS 52:14-14.9e) as amended by Chapter 233 of the Laws of 1969, whenever any employee shall indicate in writing to the Board his or her desire to have deductions made from his or her compensation for the purposes of paying employee's dues to the Association said dues shall be deducted as requested by such employee and the monies so deducted shall be transmitted to the Association designated by

the employee in such request.

#### ARTICLE X: SALARY

A. The Administrators shall receive a 2.75% increase in their base salary during the first year of the agreement, 3.0% during the second year of the agreement, 3.0% during the third year of the agreement and 3.25% during the fourth year of the agreement.

#### B. New Hires

1. For the four-year term of this Agreement, salaries for new unit member administrators entering the District will be set in accordance with the following ranges:

Principal – High School	\$84,000	TO	\$110,500
Principal – Middle School	\$79,000	TO	\$105,500
Principal - Elementary	\$79,000	TO	\$105,500
School	7200		
Assistant Principals	\$73,500	TO	\$ 95,000
Supervisors	\$68,500	TO	\$ 90,000
Directors	\$63,000	TO	\$ 84,500
Literacy Specialists	\$63,000	TO	\$ 84,500

- 2. The parties agree that the initial starting salary for all new hires or promotions effective after the date of the execution of this contract shall be negotiable between the individual prospective employee involved and the Board of Education via the Superintendent.
- 3. Any employee hired or promoted with an effective date after the start of the school year must have actual employment of more than six (6) months to be eligible to receive any increase for the next school year.

### ARTICLE XI: WORK YEAR/WORK LOAD

- A. Flex time will be mutually agreed upon between the Superintendent and the administrators whose Monday to Friday schedules extend beyond the regular school day.
- B. Instructional Supervisors shall be assigned zero (0) instructional periods per day.
- C. The salary listed in Schedule A shall be the total pensionable salary for the position. Any additional stipends are not pensionable.
- D. Ten month administrators shall work at least seven (7) days each summer which will be paid at the per diem rate.

#### ARTICLE XII: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Clayton Board of Education shall budget \$6,000 - \$7,000 to support the professional development of administrators to attend workshops and/or conventions as approved by the Superintendent (as required by law, effective July 1, 2005).

#### ARTICLE XIII: MISCELLANEOUS

#### A. General Provisions

- 1. This Agreement incorporates the entire understanding of the parties on all matters which were or could have been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party shall be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by this Agreement or whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or executed this Agreement.
- 2. This Agreement shall be printed and distributed at Board and Association expense and shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties.
- 3. This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2019 and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2023 subject to the Association's right to negotiate over a successor agreement as provided by Chapter 123 Public Law 1974. Should no new contract be negotiated by the termination date of this Agreement, this contract shall remain in full force and effect until such time as a new contract is negotiated and signed.
- 4. In the event that any portion of this Agreement shall be deemed to be in violation of the law, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
- 5. Administrators planning to retire must notify the Superintendent no later than December 1 of the year preceding the effective date of retirement in order to receive prompt payment of accumulated vacation and sick leave. Those who fail to comply with the notification procedure described herein shall be required to wait for said payment until such time as 1) the money is allocated in the next school budget; and 2) the budget becomes effective.
- 6. Full time administrators shall receive full tuition and fee reimbursement for up to three credits per semester. These costs shall not be greater than the Rutgers Graduate School credit schedule. Prior approval by the Superintendent is required. Upon successful completion of the course, tuition reimbursement shall be paid within 45 days by submission of a transcript and completion of a Board of Education voucher. In order to be eligible, the staff member must be an employee of the District on the date payment is made.

All courses must be in the field of education and be related to the administrator's current or future position with the District. Any administrator who leaves the district in less than two (2) years from the completion of coursework, will reimburse the Board of Education no more than one (1) year's tuition cost.

An administrator who terminates employment in less than two (2) years from completion of the coursework due to non-renewal, mutual agreement on voluntary termination, or medical disability shall not be required to reimburse.

Administrators shall not be eligible for reimbursement unless they receive a final grade of "C" or higher for the course on which reimbursement is being sought.

7. Children of full-time administrators, Grades K-12 who do not reside in this school district may be admitted to school in the district without payment of tuition provided that the employee applies for Choice status if applicable and the educational program of such children can be provided within district facilities without requiring additional staffing or services.

# ARTICLE XIV: FOUR-HOUR DETENTION AND TWILIGHT PROGRAM

Four hour detention and the Twilight Program require the supervision by a single administrator. Four hour detentions will not be scheduled unless there are an adequate number of students to attend as determined by the Superintendent. Four hour detentions will be scheduled no more than twice a month. The administrator assigned to supervise the programs referenced in this Article shall receive \$50 per hour for a maximum of four hours. If the administrator reports for a scheduled detention and students do not arrive on time, the administrator is required to stay for 30 minutes before the class can be cancelled. In such a case, the administrator will be paid for one hour.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed by their respective Presidents and attested to by their respective Secretaries.

Date Signed:	
CLAYTON ADMINISTRATORS' ASSOCIATION Attest:	DN: By:
Secretary	President
CLAYTON BOARD OF EDUCATION Attest: Frames Adel	By:
Frances Adler, Board Secretary	Paul Connell, Board President

# CLAYTON PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION EXCERPT REGULAR MEETING JUNE 11, 2019

Regular Meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. in the Clayton Performing Arts Center to the Clayton High School Cafeteria, 350 E. Clinton St., Clayton, NJ 08312

#### **IV. SCHOOL BUSINESS**

On motion by Jeremiah Long, seconded by Robin Roche and carried by a roll call vote of six ayes (Awalt, Colon, Connell, Grafton, Long, Roche), zero nays, and zero abstentions, the Board took the following action: Memorandums of Agreement and Contract for the Associations for the 2019-2020, 2020-2021, 2021-2022, and 2022-2023 School Years - Attachment IV P

- 1. approved the Memorandum of Agreement with the Clayton Education Association
- 2. approved the Memorandum of Agreement with the Clayton Administrators' Association
- 3. approved the Contract with the Clayton Administrators' Association

Respectfully submitted,

Frances Adler,

School Business Administrator/Board Secretary

This is a true excerpt of the minutes of the June 11, 2019 meeting of the Clayton Public School District Board of Education.

Frances Adler, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary